
 
 
 
 
 

1480 Harbour Drive 

Wilmington, NC 28401-7776 

 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 
Monday, August 9, 2021 • 11:00 A.M. 

AGENDA 

 
Items marked with *** are actionable items that require a vote. 

This meeting will be a remote meeting pursuant to SL 2020-3.  Members of the public are invited to view a live video stream of the 
meeting at www.capefearcog.org/live. Public comments received by email to main@capefearcog.org or by mail to 1480 Harbour Dr, 
Wilmington, NC, 28401 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting will be presented to the Executive Committee. For further information 
Call 910-395-4553. 

1. Invocation & Pledge 

2. Approval of Agenda *** 

3. Approval Minutes *** 
a. June 14, 2021 

4. Finance Reports 

a. Budget Report through June 30, 2021 *** 
b. Budget Ordinance Amendment *** 
c. Adopt Pay Plan for FY21/22 *** 

5. Records Retention and Disposition Policy Amendment *** 

6. Annual Meeting date and location (February 24, 2022 at the Brunswick Center at Supply) *** 

7. Staff Reports 

a. Executive Director 
b. Area Agency on Aging  
c. Homeless Continuum of Care 
d. Local Government Services 
e. Workforce Development 

8. Forum Update  

9. Chairman, Member, and Delegate Comments 

10. Adjourn 

Next Meeting: regular meeting Monday, October 11, 2021 

http://www.capefearcog.org/live
mailto:main@capefearcog.org


Page Left Blank On Purpose 



 
1480 Harbour Drive 

Wilmington, NC 28401-7776 
 

 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 
June 14, 2021, • 11:00 AM 

MINUTES 

Executive Committee Present:        
Teresa Batts*  Jan Dawson*  Walt Eccard*  Mike Forte              Lamont Grate* 
Charlie Rivenbark  

Executive Committee Absent: 
George Brown  Julia Olson-Boseman Brent Watts 

Other General Membership Delegates Present: 
John Gunter*  Glenn Marshall* Allen Oliver* 

CFCOG Staff Present:     
Ginger Brick*  Patrick Flanagan Holly Pilson*  April Radford  Allen Serkin* 
Dawn Tucker* 
Guest Present: 
Noel Fox, Atty* 

This meeting was a remote meeting held during a declared emergency pursuant to N.C.G.S. §166A-19.24.  Members 
and others who participated by simultaneous communication are indicated with an asterisk (*). 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1. Call to Order, Welcome and Roll Call 

Mr. Forte called the meeting to order & welcomed everyone at 11:02AM.  

Mr. Serkin did roll call and confirmed quorum. Present: Ms. Batts, Ms. Dawson, Mr. Eccard, Mr. Forte, Mr. Grate, 
and Mr. Rivenbark. Absent: Mr. Brown, Ms. Olson-Boseman, and Mr. Watts. 

2. Invocation and Pledge 

Mr. Rivenbark gave the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

3. Approval of Agenda 

Mr. Forte asked for approval of the agenda. Motion by Mr. Rivenbark, second by Ms. Dawson, to approve the 
agenda carried unanimously by roll call vote. Ayes: Ms. Batts, Ms. Dawson, Mr. Eccard, Mr. Forte, Mr. Grate, and 
Mr. Rivenbark. Nays: None. Absent: Mr. Brown, Ms. Olson-Boseman, and Mr. Watts. 

4. Public Comments 

There were no public comments. 

5. Approval of Minutes 

Mr. Forte asked if there were any corrections to the minutes. There were no changes. Motion by Mr. Rivenbark, 
second by Ms. Dawson, to approve the May 10, 2021, minutes as presented.  The motion carried unanimously 
by roll call vote. Ayes: Ms. Batts, Ms. Dawson, Mr. Eccard, Mr. Forte, Mr. Grate, and Mr. Rivenbark. Nays: None. 
Absent: Mr. Brown, Ms. Olson-Boseman, and Mr. Watts. 

Mr. Forte asked if there were any corrections to the minutes. There were no changes. Motion by Mr. Rivenbark, 
second by Mr. Grate, to approve the June 7, 2021, minutes as presented.  The motion carried unanimously by 
roll call vote. Ayes: Ms. Batts, Ms. Dawson, Mr. Eccard, Mr. Forte, Mr. Grate, and Mr. Rivenbark. Nays: None. 
Absent: Mr. Brown, Ms. Olson-Boseman, and Mr. Watts. 



6. Finance Report 

Ms. Tucker presented the budget report through May 31, 2021. There were no questions. Motion by Mr. Forte, 

second by Mr. Rivenbark, to approve the budget report carried unanimously by roll call vote. Ayes: Ms. Batts, 

Ms. Dawson, Mr. Eccard, Mr. Forte, Mr. Grate, and Mr. Rivenbark. Nays: None. Absent: Mr. Brown, Ms. Olson-

Boseman, and Mr. Watts. 

Ms. Tucker presented the budget ordinance amendment. There were no questions. Motion by Mr. Forte, 

second by Ms. Dawson, to approve budget ordinance amendment #6 carried unanimously by roll call vote. Ayes: 

Ms. Batts, Ms. Dawson, Mr. Eccard, Mr. Forte, Mr. Grate, and Mr. Rivenbark. Nays: None. Absent: Mr. Brown, 

Ms. Olson-Boseman, and Mr. Watts. 

Ms. Tucker informed the Executive Committee there were no changes to the draft FY 21/22 Budget Ordinance. 

There were no comments or questions from the public or Executive Committee. Motion by Mr. Rivenbark, 

second by Mr. Eccard, to approve the FY 21/22 budget ordinance as proposed carried unanimously by roll call 

vote. Ayes: Ms. Batts, Ms. Dawson, Mr. Eccard, Mr. Forte, Mr. Grate, and Mr. Rivenbark. Nays: None. Absent: 

Mr. Brown, Ms. Olson-Boseman, and Mr. Watts. 

7. Staff Report 

Mr. Serkin presented contract summary. Mr. Serkin addressed questions from the Executive Committee. Mr. 
Serkin informed the Executive Committee that the CFCOG will be hosting the COG directors meeting and the 
Forum August 5-6, 2021 and invited them to attend. Mr. Serkin will provide details to the Executive Committee. 

Ms. Pilson presented the Area Agency on Aging report. Ms. Pilson announced the retirement of Project C.A.R.E 
Coordinator, Audrey Marshall. There were no questions. 

Mr. Serkin introduced the new CoC Director, Judy Herring to the Executive Committee. Ms. Herring presented the 
CoC report. There were no questions. 

Mr. Flanagan presented the Local Government Services report on behalf of Wes MacLeod. There were no 
questions. 

Ms. Brick presented the Workforce Development report. Ms. Brick addressed questions.  

8. Chairman, Member, and Delegate Comments: 

Mr. Forte encouraged everyone to contact their state representatives in support of HB 500. There were no 

other comments.  

9. Adjournment: 

Mr. Rivenbark motioned, seconded by Ms. Dawson, to adjourn the meeting at 11:41AM. 

Respectfully submitted,      
 
 
____________________________________   ___________________________________ 
April D. Radford, Clerk to the Board    Mike Forte, Chairman 





Page Left Blank On Purpose 



CAPE FEAR COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

FISCAL YEAR 2021-2021 BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT #1 

 

WHEREAS, the Cape Fear Council of Governments (Council) is a regional council of 

governments organized pursuant to N.C.G.S. 160A-470 through 478; 

 

WHEREAS, the Council is designated by the State of North Carolina as the Lead Regional 

Organization for Region O, serving Brunswick, Columbus, New Hanover, and Pender counties; 

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Committee is the governing board of the Council; 

 

WHEREAS, a regional council of governments is a public authority subject to N.C.G.S. 159, 

Article 3, the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act; and 

 

WHEREAS, N.C.G.S. 159-8(a) requires a public authority to operate under an annual balanced 

budget ordinance; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by Executive Committee of the Cape Fear Council 

of Governments that the budget ordinance for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending 

June 30, 2022 is hereby amended as follows: 

 

SECTION 1: The following General Fund appropriations and revenues are amended as follows: 

 

 

Original 

Budget 

Amendment 

#1 

Amended 

Budget 

Expenditures by Department:    

Local Governments Services $585,377   $585,377  

Aging Services 5,137,196 87,047  $5,224,243  

Workforce Development 7,758,538 25,000  $7,783,538  

Homeless Continuum of Care 468,284  $468,284  

General Government 42,000  $42,000  

General Fund Total Expenditures $13,991,395  $112,047  $14,103,442  

    

Revenues by Source:    

Federal $93,965   $93,965  

Fed/State Pass Thru 13,338,523 87,047  $13,425,570  

State 48,263  $48,263  

Member Assessment 42,000  $42,000  

Local Aging Share 60,377  $60,377  

Local RPO Share 80,018  $80,018  

Local COC Share 115,300  $115,300  

Fee-For-Service 200,704  $200,704  

Misc.   25,000  $25,000  

Fund Balance Utilization 12,245  $12,245  

General Fund Total Revenues $13,991,395  $112,047  $14,103,442  



SECTION 2:  The Budget Officer is hereby authorized to transfer appropriations within any of 

the parts in Section 1 without the approval of the Executive Committee. 

 

Adopted this 9th day of August 2021. 
 

 

 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 

Mike Forte, Chairman     April D. Radford, Clerk 









Page Left Blank On Purpose 



1 

CAPE FEAR COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

RESOLUTION AMENDING RECORDS RETENTION AND DISPOSITION POLICY 

 

WHEREAS the Cape Fear Council of Governments (CFCOG) is a regional council of 

governments organized pursuant to N.C.G.S. sections 160A-470 through 478; 

 

WHEREAS the CFCOG is designated by the State of North Carolina as the Lead Regional 

Organization for Region O, serving Brunswick, Columbus, New Hanover, and Pender counties;  

 

WHEREAS the Executive Committee is the governing board of the CFCOG; 

 

WHEREAS N.C.G.S. § 121-5(b) and G.S. § 132-3 require the consent of the Department of 

Natural and Cultural Resources (DNCR), as administered by the State Archives of North Carolina, 

prior to destruction of public records and whose consent is granted to local government agencies 

through adoption of the General Records Schedule for Local Government Agencies; 

 

WHEREAS the Executive Committee is responsible for adoption of the Council’s Records 

Retention and Disposition Schedule, last updated on June 8, 2020; and 

 

WHEREAS the Executive Committee desires to update the Records Retention and Disposition 

Schedule to comply with retention requirements imposed by the U.S. Department of Housing and 

Urban Development (HUD) pursuant to 24 CFR 578.103(c). 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Executive Committee of the Cape Fear Council 

of Governments adopts the attached amendments to the Records Retention and Disposition 

Schedule. 

 

Adopted this 9th day of August 2021. 

 

 

 

____________________________    ___________________________ 

Mike Forte, Chair      April D. Radford, Clerk 



1 

  
 

 

   ITEM # 
STANDARD 1: ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT RECORDS 

RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION 

31. GRANTS 
Records concerning approved federal, state, and private 
grants. File includes applications, reports, records of 
equipment purchased with grant funds, and all relevant 
programmatic records. Also includes documentation about 
grants issued by the agency along with research records 
generated as part of a grant project. 

 

See also GRANTS: FINANCIAL, page 24, item 27. 

a) Destroy records supporting the expenditure of federal funds 
passed through NC DHHS on a fiscal year basis when the DHHS 
Office of the Controller provides written guidance that records 
are released from all audits and other official actions. 

b) Destroy in office records of state and private grants 5 years 
after final financial report is filed.* 

c) Destroy in office records of other federal grants 3 years 
after final financial report is filed. 

d) Destroy in office records not relating to a specific grant 
after 1 year. 

e) Destroy records related to the HUD Continuum of Care 
Program 5 years after the final financial report is filed 
unless required to be retained longer pursuant to 24 CFR 
578.103(c). 

Retention Note: According to 2 CFR 200.333(c), records for real 
property and equipment acquired with Federal funds must be 
retained for 3 years after disposition of the property/equipment. 

Retention: 
09 NCAC 03M .0703 
2 CFR 200.333 
24 CFR 578.103(c) 

32. HISTORY RECORDS (AGENCY AND EMPLOYEES) 
Records concerning the history of the agency and its 
employees. Includes published and unpublished histories, 
biographical data, photographs, newspaper 
clippings, and other related records. 

a) Retain in office records with historical value permanently. 

b) Destroy in office remaining records when reference value 
ends.† 
Agency Policy: Destroy in office after     

 

33. IMPROPER CONDUCT INVESTIGATIONS 
Records concerning investigations triggered by questions 
about ethics or conduct within an agency, such as 
whistleblower reports or allegations of fraud. Includes 
complaints, reports, investigations, and other related 
records. Also includes records from an ombuds office. 

Destroy in office 3 years after resolution.  

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION, 
page vi. 

† See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that 
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided. 

8 

2019 LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENICES GENERAL RECORDS RETENTION AND DISPOSITION SCHEDULE 



  
 

 

ITEM # 
STANDARD 2: BUDGET, FISCAL, AND PAYROLL RECORDS 

RECORDS SERIES TITLE DISPOSITION INSTRUCTIONS CITATION 

27. GRANTS: FINANCIAL 
Records concerning approved federal, state, and 
private grants received or issued by the agency. 
Includes all relevant accounting, purchasing, payroll, 
and other financial records. 

 

See also GRANTS, page 8, item 31. 

a) Destroy records supporting the expenditure of federal 
funds passed through NC DHHS on a fiscal year basis when 
the DHHS Office of the Controller provides written 
guidance that records are released from all audits and 
other official actions. 

b) Destroy in office records of state and private grants 5 years 
after final financial report is filed.* 

c) Destroy in office records of other federal grants 3 years 
after final financial report is filed. 

d) Destroy in office records not relating to a specific grant or 
to grants not funded after 1 year. 

e) Destroy records related to the HUD Continuum of Care 
Program 5 years after the final financial report is filed 
unless required to be retained longer pursuant to 24 
CFR 578.103(c). 

Retention Note: According to 2 CFR 200.333(c), records for real 
property and equipment acquired with Federal funds must be 
retained for 3 years after disposition of the 
property/equipment. 

Retention: 
09 NCAC 03M .0703 
2 CFR 200.333 
24 CFR 578.103(c) 

28. INVESTMENTS 
Includes fund information, portfolio listings and 
reports, balance sheets, exchange or consent 
instructions, broker confirmations, notices, and other 
documentation related to agency investments. Also 
includes transaction schedules for projecting revenue 
on investments as well as performance investment 
reports issued by broker or investment firm. 

a) Destroy in office transaction schedules after 2 years.* 

b) Destroy in office performance investment reports when 
reference value ends. 

c) Destroy in office all remaining records after 3 years.* 

Authority: 
G.S. § 159-30 

 
 
 

* No destruction of records may take place if audits or litigation are pending or reasonably anticipated. See AUDITS, LITIGATION, AND OTHER OFFICIAL ACTION, 
page vi. 

† See signature page. The agency hereby agrees that it will establish and enforce internal policies setting minimum retention periods for the records that 
Natural and Cultural Resources has scheduled with the disposition instruction “destroy when reference value ends.” Please use the space provided. 

24 

2019 LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENICES GENERAL RECORDS RETENTION AND DISPOSITION SCHEDULE 

2 



Page Left Blank On Purpose 


